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THE PEALS ANALYSIS.

The last of the war-time peals analyses has appeared,
and, covering as it does the first weeks of peace, the figures
show the initial signs of the upward movement in pc-al
ringing. Nearly a half of the 229 tower bell peals were
rung after the Armistice, in the last seven weeks of the
year, and must be taken as a satisfactory beginning in
re-establishing ringing, because, whatever else may be said
of them, peals mark the advance or decline of the art, and
are a very true index of the virility of the Exercise. With
the advantage gained by the 114 tower bell peals in
November and December, 1918 rises above the per-
formances in any of the three preceding years, and the
indications are of a steady increase since the close of the
period which the analysis covers.

Little can, of course, be said of the statistics which the
Committee have published. They are an interesting
record of what was done in 1918, but beyond that, conynent
is really superfluous in view of the great difficulties that
beset the art during the last year of the war. Lancashire
and Yorkshire, each with 31 peals on tower bells, and the
latter with one handbell peal in addition, were easily the
first in number of peals rung; but the College Youths,
with eight peals on handbells and five on tower bells, had
the best average, calculated on points. The Committee
have recorded, with their cu>tomary diligence, all the
matters of interest in the peals, but there is one feature in
the statistics which shows that ringing during the war not
only declined tremendously in quantity, but also in the
quality of the methods rung. In 1913, the record year of
peal ringing, Surprise -methods on eight bells and upwards
made up nine per cent, of the peals rung; last year the
Surprise peals, limited to three of Superlative, formed only
a trifle over one per cent.

Everyone, of course, is looking forward to a great revival
of peal ringing, and there is not much doubt that the
Committee’s desire for more arduous duties in the years to
come will be gratified. The statistics which they compile
can never be other than interesting, but there are many
ringers who deprecate the use of the analysis as a com-
petitive incentive to associations to carry peal ringing to
excess. Ths Council are asked this year to express an
opinion upon one aspect of the preparation of the tabulated
figures, perhaps they may be asked also to consider whether
the present method of alphabetical order for the associa-
tions should be retained, or whether there should be a
return to the form by which the association, which has the
best aggregate or the best average of points, should be
placed at the top, with the others in order of precedence by
the same method of calculation.

(Continued on page 214.)
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BELLS!BELLS! BELLS!

Let the Music of the Bells celebrate Peace.

Messrs. CHARLES CARR Ltd

The OLD-ESTABLISHED firm of Bcllfounders,

are now prepared to execute orders for all
kinds of Bells, singly or in rings. Their
foundry is equipped with every modern
appliance for the manufacture of Bells of any
size, weight or note, all their Bells being
moulded and cast on scientific principles;
while their knowledge of the ‘Chemistry
of Metals’ enables them to produce that fine
quality of Tone so much desired by all
lovers of Bell Music.

In their finishing and fitting shops they have installed the
most ‘ up-to-date’ Tools and Machinery for the making
of Bell Frames and Fittings, so that they are in a
~  position to carry out the complete installation

of Peals of Bells for Churches, or Sets
of Chimes for Public Clocks, etc.

SPECIAL ATTENTION GIYEN TO THE RECASTING AND
REHANGING OF EXISTING PEALS.

Orders may be placed now for delivery at a
future date to suit the convenience of clients.

KLL MATERIALS CHEMICALLY AND MECHANICALLY TESTED.
Catalogue and Book of Testimonials post free on application.

THE WOODLANDS BELL
AND BRASS FOUNDRY,

SMETHWICK, BIRMINGHAM,

ESTABLISHED 1760.

JOHN NICOLL,

Church Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer,

60, QUEEN'S ROAD, PECKHAM, LONDON, S.E.

(Two minutesfrom Queen’'s Road Station, L.B.&S.C. Railway),
Late 155 Keeton's Road, Bermondsey.

Maker to St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial Institute,

Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Alban's, Lincoln, Durham, Peterborough,

Melbourne, (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St. Patrick's, Manchester,
and Worcester Cathedrals, etc., etc.
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(Continued from page 213.)

There is a great deal to be said on both sides, which
brings us back to the old argument as to whether competi-
tive points should be allotted to peals or not, and it opens
up a big question which there is not room in this article to
deal with. But now that ringing, as we all hope, is on tbe
road to the status which existed before the war, the Central
Council might well consider afresh what their attitude on
the matter will be. that is to say whether by the foriri of the
analysis they will officially countenance the competitive
side of peal ringing.

TEN BELL PEALS.

CHESTERFIELD. DERBYSHIRE.
THE MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.
Or. Saturday, May 31, 1919, in Three Hours and Twenty-Four Minutes.

At the Church of Si. Mary and All Saints,

A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB ROYAL, 6160 OHARCES ;
Tenor 24$ cwt.
John Flint ... Arthur Knights
John Holman Samuel W esley
eEdwin C. Chasty ..
W ittiam Biggin e 9
W alter Allwood ...Tenor
Composed by Arthur Knights.
Conducted by George Hollis.
* First peal of Treble Bob Royal.

o0 ~N O

George Hollis ...
F rank Jacobs .
Edward C. Gobey

BLACKBUItN, LANCASHIRE.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, May 31, 1919, in Three Hours and Twenty-Two Minutes,
At the Parish Church,

A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB ROYAL. 5000 CHANGES ;
Tenor 17 cwt.

«James Houldsworth ...Treble <A1fred Houldsworth ... 6
*Tom W ilson ... .2 Emmanuel Dcteson 7
Arthur Tomlinson ... __ 3 Tom Redman ... 8
Harry Entwistle ... .. 4 William E. Wilson .9
Rennie Hartley 5 John Watson

Composed by B. Annabie.
Conducted by Tom Redman.

Rung with the bells half-muffled in memory of the men in tho
Blackburn Branch, who have made the great sacrifice in the war.

- First peal of Royal.

EIGHT BELL PEALS.

ECCLES, LANCASHIRE.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

On Monday, May 19, 1919, in Two Hours and Forty-Six Minutes,

At the Church of St. Mary,
H PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLE8, 5040 CHANCES;
James W. W ashbrook ...Treble James W. W ashbrook, jus. 5
Edward Oldfield 2 Richard F. Deal 6
C. W. Clark . . 3 Harry Chapman.... 7
Samuel Greenhalgh 4 Amos T rippier ...Tenor

Composed and Conducted by J. W. W ashbrook, senr.
Rung as a birthday compliment to Messrs. Greenhalgh ahd Trippier.
R. F. Deal hails from London, the ringer of the 2nd belongs to
the local band, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 7th and tenor arc members of St.
Thomas', Pendleton.

HALESOWEN. WORCESTERSHIRE.
WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.
On Tuesday, May 20, 1919, in Three Hours and Three Minutes,

At the Church of St. John the Baptist.

A PEAL OF 8TEDMAN TRIPLES, 6040 CHANCES;

Thurstans' Four-part. Tenor 19Scwt.
..Treble W ittiam Cotley
2 Victor W hite

3 W ittiam H. W eub
Edward Brettle 4

Harry Le a ...
Elijah W hite

George N. Cockin

- Matthew llackett
Conducted by W. H. W ebb.
Rung as a compliment to Elijah White on his 75th birthday.
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LONDON.
THE LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
(Late the St. James’ Society.)

On Thursday, May 22, 1919, in Three Honrs and Two Minutes,
At the Chdkch of St. Giles-in-Fields, Bloomsbury,
A PEAL OF SUPERLATIVE SURPRISE MAJOR, 6152 CHANCES ;

Tenor 18 cwt.
Capt.J. H. R. Freeborn Treble | William Nudds
Thomas H. Taffender ... 2 | Edgar Wightman
*Frederick G. Symonds 3 I Albert W. Coles
Frank Smith | | Reuben Sanders

Composed by E. Wightman.
Conducted by Thomas H. Taffender.

* First peal of Surprise with an inside bell.
KELSALB, SUFFOLK.
THE NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, May 24, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-Five Minutes,
At the Parish Church,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, S088 CHANCES;

Tenor i6£ cwt.

George Wilson... ..Treble James G. Rumsay
Alfred Keeble ... 2 Ernest S. Bailey T ¢}
James M. Bailey .3 Frederick W. Bailey 7
Edgar H: Bailey .. 4 George Hardy ... ...Tenor

Composed by A. Knights.
Conducted by George Wilson.

KILDWICK, YORKS
THE YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, May 24, 1919, in Three Hours and Fourteen Minutes,
At the Church of St. Andrew,
A PEAL OF KENT BOB MAIJOR. 5216 CHANCES;
Tenor 15 cwt.

Ellis Lambert ..Treble *Dr. Wales 5
Christopher Brown 2 Henry Horner 6
Harry Roe 3 W illiam Billows... 7
John McKell.. 4 Wiilliam D. H 11ary Tenor

Composed by Arthur Knights and conducted by W. Billows.

* First peal. Ringers of 1,2,3 belong to local company : 4and 5
are ffom Gargrave; 6,7, and 8 from Skipton.

CUBITT TOWN.
THE MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, May 24, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty Minutes,
At Christ Church,
A PEAL OF CRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANCES;

Holt's Original. Tenor 12 cwt.

Charles T. Clarke ... Treble W iltiam H. Daynes 5
Harold W. Clarke 2 George H. Daynes 6
"Albert J. 3 T homas Jakeman 71
Thomas H. Hawkins........ ( Dalby Hodgson ..Teiini

Conducted by George H. Daynes.

This peal was rung in honour of Empire Day, and also as a welcome
ilome to Messrs. A. J. Ford and W. H. 1Jaylies, on their return to
civilian life from active service.

' Elected a member previous to starting for peal.
EARLS COLNE ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
Ok Saturday, May 24, 1919, in Three Hours and Three Minutes,
At the Church of St. Andrew,

A PEAL OF BOB MAIJOR, 5040 CHANCES;
Tenor 14 cwt. o qr. 15 Ib.
‘Herbert Fairiiead .Treble James Fleuty ... eee §
Walter Burst 2 Frank Claydon .. ... 6
tlonN Turner . 3 Jlames French
"Robert Fledty ... 4 W illiam Scillitoe ..Tenor

Composed by B. Annable and conducted by J. French.

Rung to celebrate Empire Day, and was the first peal on the bells by
an entirely local band. ‘ First peal. fPirst on S bells. JFirst on 8
bells as conductor. These bells are rung for every Sunday service
throughout the year.
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SIX BELL PEALS.

WOODSTON.
On Saturday, May 10, 1919, in Three Hours and Fifteen Minutes,
At the Church of St. Augustine,
A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 5040 CHANCES;

Being seven 720's each called differently.

H. Hoare, sen. ... ...Treble Miss F. A. Colpen .. 4
Miss P. Hare S. H. Hoare ... 5
Miss A. Parkens H. Hoare, jun. ...Tenor

Conducted by H. Hoare, junr.
First peal by all except the conductor, and itwas his first peal in that
capacity. First peal on the bells by a Woodston band. The three
ladies took their first lesson in handling a bell 16 months ago.

GESTINGTHORPE, ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.

Un Sunday, May It, 1919, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes,
At the Parish Church,
A PEAL OF TREBLE BOB MINOR, 5040 CHANCES;
being three 720's of Kent, and two each of Oxford and Woodbine.
Tenor 16 cwt.

eStanley Finch . Treble
Harry W. Catterwell... 2
Harry Cansell

Ernest Turner ... .. 4
Olave E. Broyd... — 5
George E. Pannell ...Tenor

Conducted bv O. E. Broyd.

First peal.

HUSBORNE CRAWLEY, BEDFORDSHIRE.
THE BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Friday, May 23, 1919, in Three Hours and Seven Minutes,
At the Church of St. Mary Magdalene,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANCES ;

being two 720's each of Kent and Oxford Treble Bob, and three 720's

of Plain Bob. Tenor 18J cwt.
Gnr.C.Sinfield, R.F.A. Treble EdmcndlJ. Hobbs 4
*William Janes. 2 Mark Lane .. .5
Cyril Herbert... 3 Horace H. Smith ... Tenor

Conducted by H. H. Smith.
The peal was arranged for Gnr. Sinfield, on leave from Germany.
* First peal.

HANDBELL PEALS.

BIRMINGHAM.

[ ] THE ST. MARTIN'S GUILD FOR THE DIOCESE OF
BIRMINGHAM.

On Thursday, May 29, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-Eight Minutes,
in the Belfry of the Pro-Cathedral,
A PEAL OF STEOMAN CATERS, 6151 CHANCES;

Tenor 17 size in B flat.

George F. Swann ... I—2 I Albert Walker 5~ 0
James E. Groves....uuuna. 3—4 | Wilham Kent 7-8
Morris J Morris 9—10.

Composed and conducted by James E. Groves.

This composition, now rung for the first time, has 1—2 and 2—1 in
alternate blocks of three courses in 1—2 at each and every one of the
48 course ends with the 5th and 6th in sth's place in alternate blocks
of 12 courses, 24 in the tittums and 24 in the handstroke.

SOLIHULL. WARWICKSHIRE.
TUE ST. MARTIN'S GUILD FOR THE DIOCESE OF
BIRMINGHAM.
On Friday. Miry 30th, 1919, ik One Hour and Fifty-Six Minutes,

At Malvern Villas, New Road,
A PEAL OF CRANOSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANCES;

G roves Variation of Parker’'s Twelve-part.
Charles Bragg . 1—2 | Edgar C. Shepherd 5—6
Harry Bragg .. 3—4 | ‘Hubert Shepherd ... 7-8
Conducted by Edgar C. Shepherd. Witness: J. Martin.

* First peal 01l handbells. First peal of Triples by all, and first
handbell peal of Triples rung in Solihull.

Other Veals art unavoidably held over.
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SALISBURY DIOCESAN GUILD.
THB PROPOSED WAR MEMORIAL.

Representatives from practically all parts of tbe dioce e, and num-
bering 105, attended the annual festival of the Salisbury Diocesan
Guild at Wimborne on Saturday, May 17th. The service in the Minster
was conducted by the Hon. Secretary of the Guild (the Rev. F. LI
Edwards, the Vicar (Canon J. Fletcher) also taking part. The uev.
A D. H. Allan (headmaster of Wimborne Grammar School and an
hon. member of Wimborne Guild) gave the address.

Luncheon was served in the Victoria Hall, the Master (the Rev. tt.
E. Tilncy Bassett) presiding. At the conclusion of the meal,

Mr. M. J. Raymond, one of the churchwardens of Wimborne Minster,
in proposing ' The Salisbury Diocesan Guild of' Ringers,’” mentioned
that of about 800 members 500 served in the war, aivl at least 50
had made the supreme sacrifice. That was a record, he was sure,
of which any Guild or other organisation could bo very proud (hear,

hear). It wag an excellent sign to see so many young ringers pre-
sent that afternoon. They could not bo too young to begin to lake
nu interest iu the art of bell ringing. Mr. Raymond wished the

Guild long lifo and the prosperity which it was entitled to (applause).
—The Master, in reply, observed that he felt sure that the Guild, so
long as it had the support of the ringers and good guidance of tne
officers, would continue to prosper (hoar, hear).

CHANGE OF PRESIDENT AND MASTER.

The Hon. Secretary regretted that the report for last year was not
yet to hand owing t0 unavoidable delays. The balance in hand at
the end of the last financial year was -£52 6s. 0°d. With, receipts tho
total income for the year was £77 14s. 7Jd., compared to expenditure
of £15 16s. 2d., leaving a balance of *£61 18s. 5Jd, (hear, hear).—The
accounts as presetted were adopted.

Captain J. E. Acland (Dorchester) having resigned the post of presi-
dent of the Guild recommended as his successor the Earl of Shaftes-
bury, a vice-president for many years, who had consented to accent
the position.—It was pointed out that it was not an annual office, it
being retained during the President's pleasure. — The election w-as
unanimously agreed to, and it was resolved a cordial vote of thanks
should be written by tho Secretary to Captain Acland for his past
service.

The Rev. Tilney Bassett, who ha<] filled tho office for the past six
years, intimated lie did not wish to be rc-elected Master. Captain
Acland had found a successor well known in Dorset, a Dorset ringer,
and, until called up for war service, a great worker ou behalf of the
Guild, Major Hughes D'Aeth (Gillingham).

Major D'Aeth, acknowledging a unanimous election, said he con-
sidered it wag not only a great honour to himself, but to thoso ringers
of the Guild who had been out with him serving His Majesty, and to
those who had laid down their lives for the great cause. He believed
that one of his own battalion was one of the first of the Guild mem-
bers to make the supreme sacrifice—Sam Davey, of Netherbury, who
died on his journey to India. Speaking as a layman to the clergy.
Major D'Aeth stated that on service one heard a good deal against
what they called the padre. He came from Bagdad, where he was
the first churchwarden, and where he started a branch of the Church
of England Men's Society. The general complaint amongst the men
was that the parsons in England were too sad about everything—
(laughter)—in the pulpit they were too sad on Sundays, which should
bo a day of rejoicing, praise, and thanksgiving. He had also heard
it said by very many men they did not want to be continually
told they were sinners (laughter and hear, hear). There were other
things to teach men (hear, hear). He had heard it said by the men
so very often in the field that every time they had a church parade
they were told they wrfre wicketl men. They did their best not 'mwe
be, and naturally got rather tired of being told every Sunday (hear,
hear). Incidentally, Major D'Aeth mentioned that he had been ring-
ing. with the exception of the time during the war, ever since he was
six years old, and be believed their secretary, too, learnt his first
scientific ringing at the same time as he (the speaker) did.

The Uev. F. LI. Edwards was unanimously re-elected lion, secretary,
an office which, it was remarked, he had excellently held for eighi
or nine years.

SCHEMES TO PERPETUATE MEMORY OF THE FALLEN.

A committee had I>een deputed to consider what steps should be
taken regarding a memorial to ringers of the diocese who had falle-i
in the war.—Mr. T. 11. Beams (Rradpole), honorary assistanl-secretary.
explained that he was deputed to have a conversation with the Arch-
deacon of Sanim, who was acting as deputy to the Dean, with a
view to ascertaining what form of memorial would lie acceptable to
the Dean and Chapter in the Cathedral. They had doubtless seen by
the report of the Synod that the Archdeacon made a public state-
ment to ihe effect that they did not want a series of memorials in the
Cathedral differing very much in character, but they had formed a
scheme by which the whole of the windows in the north aisle of the
Cathedral should, as funds permitted, be glazed with appropriate
designs. Each window consisted of two huge lights, and the Arch-
deacon said to glaze one of these window, would cost somewhere in
111" neighbourhood of £1.000, or one light would be about £500. When
the committee were informed of the cost, it caused them to hold thei"
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hands, because they felt that it was such an euormous expense. Un-
less they had the full sanction of the Gull/1 as a body they could
not attempt to go forward with the scheme. They had, therefore, not
done, anything further, and they would like a free expression of
opinion as to what the members thought.

On the secretary’s proposition, those present agreed to the appoint-
ment of of a small committee, consisting of the President, the Master.
Secretary, Assistant-Secretary, and Mr. M. Stewart, with power to
add to their number if they thought fit, to arrange for a memorial
peal as suggested if possible, and also make definite arrangements for
a Permanent memorial.

The Rev. C. Carew Cox (West, Moors), in seconding, suggested as an
alternative memorial to that mentioned the placing of a brass or
bronze on the north wall of the Cathedral.

The Secretary, recalling the fact that, a bell had been rung daily
iu the diocese during the war a* a call for prayer for those on active
service, proposed that the Guild respectfully request the Bishop to
restore an ancient custom in that diocese, as a perpetual memorial
to’ their fellow»oountrymcii who had sacrificed their lives in the Great
War, by directing that al all churches in the diocese a bell should
bo rung every Friday at noon, at the sound whereof prayers shoulil
be offered for the peace of the realm.—Major D'Aeth seconded tin'
proposition, which wag carried.

A member inquired if there was any prospect of getting Sherborne
affiliated with the Guild.- The Secretary promised lie would do what
he could towards the desired, end.—Those present agreed that the col-
lection taken at the service should I> divided between the memorial
fund which was being raised for that diocese and the fund opened
towards the cost of rchanging the ten bells of St. Clemcut Danes
Church (London), where a central memorial service for ringers was
held in February last, and Mr. Stewart who uttendcd as the Guild s
representative, gave his impressions of tne unique occasion.

Mr. C. H. Jennings, secretary of the Dorchester Branch, mentioned
that at Charminster it was proiiosed to add a I>ell to the peal of five
to tho memory of tho fallen in the parish, and he asked for a sum of
£2 towards the cost from the Guild funds.—The grant was sanc-
tioned. and the secretary promised he would do his best ill an effort
to get the old peal improved.—The meeting also voted a sum not ex-
ceeding £4- for the expenses of the Guild's representatives at the
Central Council this year.

A vote of thanks was accorded the Vicar and churchwardens of Wim
borne Minster, aivl also the clergy who bad lent their towers in
neighbouring place* for the visits of tile ringers, the Rev. A. 1)
Allan for his sermon, and Mr. G. F. Score for playing the organ at
the service.—Canon Fletcher made reply.

A vote of condolence was also passed with the parents and relatives
of lingers who had laid down their lives, coupled with it being a
sympathetic reference to the death of the Rev. H. ('. Coote. Vicar
of St. Peter’s. Dorchester, an hon. member.

Bands of ringers afterwards visited the towers of the Minster, St
James’s Church, Poole, St. Giles, Cranborne, and Sturminster Mar-
shall Parish Churches, and the methods rung during the day included
Grandsire and Stedman Caters and Triples, Double Norwich Major
and Treble Bob Royal.

CENTRAL NORTHANTS ASSOCIATION.
KETTERING DISTRICT.

On Saturday. May 17th, a most successful meeting of the Kettering
District was held at Burton Latimer, when, thanks to a lovely day. J
very large number of ringers attended.

The bells were set. going at an early hour, and at 4.30 a service was
held in the beautiful church, at which an address was given by the
Rector, which wa8 very much appreciated by all who attended. A
splendid tea was provided and soon, demolished, and it was discovered
tliat the attendance came to as many as 45. the following belfrie’
being noticed as being represented, viz.: Barton Seagrave, Burton
Latimer. Cranford, Desl>orouglf, Geddington. Isham, Kettering, Fine-
don. Kothwell, llaunds, Itingstead, Thrapston and Wellingborough.

The meeting was presided over by the Rector, who was supported
by the District Vice-President, the Rev. E. J. Atkins; the District
Secretary, Mr W. T. Wilson; the foreman of the local ringers. Mr.
G. Lines; Lieut. E. M. Atkins, Mr. It. Turner, etc.

Several new meml>ers were elected, including tlie three ladies from
Goddinglon.—It was agreed to hold the annual district, meeting at
Kettering On the first Saturday in July, and a special meeting to
visit Arthingworth. Harrington, Kelinarsh on a date to I> arranged
by the secretary.—After some votes of thanks a return was made U
the tower, where the bells wcro set going again.

RHYL RINGER'S DEATH.

We regret to announce, the death of Mr. W. H. Bell, one of the
oldest member, of St. Thomas's Society, Rhyl. As a token of respect
to his memory a muffled 720 Bob Minor was rung at St. Thomas's
Church before morning service on Sunday, May 25th, by: F. Homan
1, B. li. Collis 2. J. Evans 3. T. Evans 4, C. Egcrtou 5, J, Ellis (con-
ductor) 6, F. Bailey tenor (covering).
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THE CENTRAL COUNCIL.

, To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—Your leading article tliis week will be appreciated by all
who wish to see tlio Council occupy the usoful position that it ought.
Wliat if- to bo its future? Is it likely to bo mended or ended? You
state that it should bo foremost with proposals lo advance the art
and that it should realise its true position. True! tliut is the point-
but what i9 its true ‘position '? We have been told that it is merely
an advisory, noil-administrative institution, quite powerless to carry
out or enforce any of its decrees. Surely there must be- something
peculiar and unsatisfactory in such an arrangement.

With its organisation of President, Secretary, Standing Committee,
and duly appointed delegates from Associations, meeting in solemn
conclave merely to discuss, advise, report, but without necessary
powers to carry out or enforce their decisions—what an anomaly!

The idea of the national muffled ringing lor our departed sailors
and soldiers was apparently carried out by a few associations and not
by the central body/(And so, in my humble opinion, did not sixain
lo the dignity it deserved. It was the work of ' Constituents ' not
m Parliament.’

At oue time it was suggested that 110 meetings should be held dur-
ing the war, and that meeting once in three years would be sutli-
cient. But surely if meetings are unnecessary in the days we are now
passing through, they are not required at any time. I would re-
spectfully suggest that m addition to the annual meeting, quarterly
meetings lie also held even if a few members only coul/l find it
possible to attend; and also that the president and secretary have
the power to call a special meeting when anything of a special nature
U required; and, above all, that the Council should have full power
to administer and not only be advisory: and, | believe, that the
majority of ringers woidd loyally abide by the wishes of those thev
have chosen to represent them.

Cannot the Council (as a licdy) take up the question of railway
fares, raising funds for special purposes, receive a small annual sub-
scription from every member through the associations represented
take over the ownership of ringing publications (which appear to be
at present, left to private enterprise), appoint aivl pay the Editor, see
that all ringers subscribe, and not, as is too often the case at present
have one copy, one company?

Council meetings have-been very useful in the past for experts'
discussions 011 Lead ends Surprises, and other equally entertaining
subjects, but they have seldom achieved their purpose. WhyO0O He-

cause we are told that the Council has no powers! Let the Council
be invested with authority to carry out what is decided upon for
the benefit of ringers ami ringing in general, or it is useless.

should anything of a national character be desired, it is far more
likely to be successful if undertaken by a national body, than by
individual Associations or private members. We have in our presi-
dent a gentleman of experience, an enthusiast in ringing, united

in a most, genial disposition; in our secretary a treasure of undoubted
ability; a Council selected from the most prominent exponents of the

art—chosen by ourselves from ourselves and many subjects awaiting
is no

solution, many objects demanding attention—certainly there
lack of business, and with a constitution as far as possible per-
fect, tho Council should have a, long nnd useful life before it. But It

is essential that, it should have powers as well as opinions, and that
it and ringers generally must ‘ realise their true position.'—Yours
faithfully.

Saffron Walden. J. F. PENNING.

PETERBOROUGH to DISTRICT ASSOCIATION.
A VETERAN RINGER'S ANCIENT TRADE.

A meeting of this association was held at King's Cliffe on Saturday
work. Members, to the number of 24. attended from Stamford.
Woodston and St. Mary's, Peterborough, while Miss Orlebar. of
Merstham. was also present. The Peal of five was kept going during
tin- afternoon and evening to Plain Bob, Grandsire and Stedman
Doubles. The Rector (the Rev. J. W. Marsh) kindly entertained -he
valors, together with the local band, to tea at the Cross Keys.

King's C'liffo, an old-world village, right in the heart of Rockingham
Foiost, is interesting as the birthplace and home of William Law.
Nonjuror and author of the ‘ Serious Call.' His tomb is in the cast,
end of the churchyard iu front of the old house where lie dwelt.
Fifty years ago King's Cliffe was the centre of the wood turning
industry. To-day there are still two or three left who carrv
oil tile trade of their fathers. The writer had the pleasure of visit-
ing one of these ancient workshops, ami saw its old occupant turn-
ing out the various articles, including lieer taps, egg cups, spoons, etc.,
in the same old-fashioned way that they Iluid been made for cen-
turies, The old turner, whot. by-the-by. was a ringer, said that
when he was a boy there were upwards of 80 wocd turners in Cliffe.
Mow there are only three of them left. They had plenty of order*
more than they could fulfil, and plenty of money for tho work, lie
lind lost his two' sons in the war. so there is no one left to carry
on the business when he is gone. J. J.
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NORTH NOTTS ASSOCIATION.
SUCCESSFUL MEETING AT RKTFORD.

The 32nd annual meeting of tho North Notts Association was held
at East Retford, the committee choosing a most fitting and appro-
priate day for the occasion, viz., Empire Day, Saturday, May 24th.
Ringers were present from Anston, Harthill, Rotherham, Mansfield
Woodhouse. Gainsbrough, Lincoln, Laneham, Worksop and East Ret-
ford. Good touches of Grandsire Triples, Bob Major, Treble Bob
Major, Stedman Triples and Grandsire Caters were rung during the
afternoon, in the course of which a junior from Worksop made his
debut Oll ten bells, and performed very crcditably. The Vicar ef East
Retford (the Rev. C. Bailey) visited tho ringing chamber, and gave
a most inspiring and interesting address to the memliers. He said
what a pleasure it was to welcome the ringers to East Retford, and
referred to the appropriateness of the day they had chosen, and tie
delight of the people of Retford and district at hearing the bells
rung once more Ol that festal occasion. At present, through the
exigencies of the war. his own band of ringers was very much de-
pleted and disorganised, but lie sincerely hoped the result of that
gathering would be to give an impetus to uniting them again so that
the people of Retford would have the pleasure of hearing the bells for
Sunday service. Church Festivals, and National Anniversaries. There
was nothing more '‘beautiful in his opinion than a peal of good hells
when skilfully rung, and he sincerely hoped that gathering would lie
tho means of bringing them together, and the bells being regularly
rung in the future.

The ringers afterwards adjourned to Howard's Restaurant to par-
take of a substantial tea which was served in a style reminiscent of
pre-war days. The Vicar of East Retford presided, supported ry
Messrs. Il. Haigh and A. Beck, joint secretaries, ex-Sergt. W. H.
Johnson. V.C.. and others.—Mr A. Johnson, of Worksop, occupied
the chair at the business meeting which followed, the Vicar having
to leave early.

The officers were re-elected en bloc, with one or two minor altera-
Jordan and H. Simpson, all of

:"'ns. and Messrs. R. Wright, H.
Worksop, were ejected performing member* of the Association.
Messrs. Colin Ryder, Arthur Hague and Sidney Briggs, of Rother-

ham, were elected non-resident life members.

The balance sheet presented showed that the balance in hand had
been increased from £17 13s. Iljd. to £22 16s. 10~d. during 1918.

Mr. H. Haigh took the opportunity of impressing upon the mem-
bers  the importance of supporting the ‘ Ringing World'
by each taking a copy every week. Without. the paper
they would have no source of information as to what was
going on in ringing circles in other parts of the country. If they
lost their paper it would be a terrible blow to the real enthusiasts.
Another reason why they should support the paper was it saved the
secretary a lot of time and the Association much expense in not
having to notify the meetings to every tower by post. Their meet-
ings were always advertised in the ' Ringing World.” The Worksop
company started in 1911 with twelve copies a week, and had never
taken less than ten during the war, while now- they were taking
thirteen. He hoped other towers would do even better than Worksop.

Tile next quarterly meeting was fixed for Harthill, in July, by the
kind permission of the Rev Canon Darley

Voles of thanks, to the incumbents of East Retford. West Ret-
ford and Ordsall respectively for the use of the bells were unani-
mously accorded, ami the belfries of East and West Retford were
again visited, and touches of Minor and Caters rung in various methods
until 8.0 p.pi., when the bellg were lowered in peal.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

The May meeting was held at Eecles, when a goodly company as-
sembled. Ringing started about 4 P.m.. and continued until after
8 p.m., touches in Grandsire, Stedman and Kent Treble Bob Major
being practised by mired bands from most of the local towers, as
well as Stockport and other Cheshire districts. The business meeting
was presided over by Mr. W. E Ryder, who was congratulated upon
having * grown younger ' again, and being aide to do some more
work, after retiring through ill-health.

One new member was elected, and the next meeting was arranged
for Whitefield 011 June 21st, providing the necessary permission can
lie obtained.

The best thanks of the meeting were accorded to the Vicar and
wardens for permission to use the liells, and to the local ringers for
getting everything ready nnd welcoming the members to the ancient
church of Eccles.

BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.

A meeting of the Bedford District was held at Milton Ernest on
Saturday last, members being present from Bedford, Biggleswade.
F.Istow Bromham and Sharnbrook. Mr. C. W. Clarke was voted to
the chair, and was supported by the Hon. Secretary Of the Associa-
tion (Mr. E. P. Duffield) and Mr. C. A., Pratt, the Biggleswade Dis-
trict. Secretary. It was proposed to liotd the next meeting at
Bletsce and Riseloy 01l June 21st. Three new members were elected,
and a hearty vote, of thanks was accorded to the Vicar for the use
of the bells, and to the ladies for providing ten.
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fenor Bell, 25A cwt., of the new ring
of Ten at St. Peter’s, Brighton
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For Rehanging, Retuning find Recasting

Musical Handbells In se.is, Bt-1l Fop<&, \

At the Handbell Contest liel/i annually iu Manchester the
First Prize for the last 10 years has been awarded to hands
using our bells, and onfourteen ot thrs' ucasions they have rained
the Sfcond Prize also

June 6th, 1919.

BELFRY GOSSIP.

There is likely to bo a large attendance of members at the Cen-
tral Council meeting nt Gloucester next Tuesday, and 0110 of tlio busiest
lingers in tlio western city just now is Mr. John Austin.

Last year the Council ordered their committees each to elect a
chairman wlio should 1> responsible for preparing the committee s
report, which, it was suggested, should lie published before the meet-
ing.

The Peuls Analysis Committee havo published their report—as usual
—but where, are the others? llave they nothing to report?

In the Wimborne Branch of the Salisbury Guild, tho secretary is
prepared to receive applications for tho cxpensos of any party ring-
ing for peace, in a tower whero the boUs would otherwise have been
silent.

A peal of Stedman Triples on one’'s 75th birthday is not a bad per-
formance. Congratulations to Mr. Elijah White, of Halesowen!

Ringers who experience difficulty in obtaining their Kinging
World ' punctually should send a postal order for 2s. 6<L to the Edi-
torial Office, 9. Commercial Road, Woking, when the paper "ill be
sent post free for three months.

The six bells at Chailoy. Sussex, rang out merrily one day last week
to welcome the return of the Rector (the Rev, T. Tt, L. Jellicoe).

who is a cousin of Lord Jellicoe, on his return from naval chaplaincy
duties in the Mediterranean.

All roads will lead to Clapham to-morrow for the opening of t.o
first completely new post-war peal.

The fine peal of eight bells at Ross, Herefordshire (tenor 24 cwt.),
has recently been reliung by Mr. J. E. Groves, of Birmingham, Il

is probable that in the near future two trebles will lie added at this
church.

Next Monday is the anniversary of the peal of Grandsire Triples
rung on June 9th, 1850. at Christ Church, Philadelphia, U.S.A. 1l
was conducted by Henry Haley.

KENT ASSOCIATION.
TONBRIDGE DISTRICT SECRETARY'S 25TH YEAR.

The annual meeting of the Tonbridge district was held at
Chiddingstone, and was attended by about 50 members. A s]>ecKi
service was held, kindly arranged by the Rector (the Rev. li C
Salmon), who officiated, and gave a short address. Mrs. Salmon pre-
sided at the organ, and the service was very hearty throughout. The
Rector presided at the tea which followed, supported by the Re\
F. 1. Schreiber iVicar of Shipbourne. and an lion, member of tic
Association). At the I>usiyesN meeting. Mr. W. Latter and Mr. <i
Edwards were re-elected to ihe offices of district secretary and dis
trict- representative resl>ectively. In returning thanks for his re-
election, the District Secretary remarked that this was his 25th year
of holding office.

Twenty-four new members were elected. It was decided to revert
to the pre-war practicc of holding four district meetings a year, in-
stead of two as at pre-ent, and ihe following places were selected:

Maiden in July; Tunbridge Wells and (by Kkind invitation of ihe
Rev. E. L. Schreiber) Shipbourne in the autumn; and the annual
district meeting at Edenbridge in January.

The District Secretary reported that the bells at St. Peter's, Tun-
bridge Wells, were !>cing recast, and wefe to be rehung with all now
fittings. The work was being carried out by Messrs. Gillett nnd
Johnston, of Croydon, and he hoped the work would be complete |
within the next few weeks. He also spoke of the Association
memorial to the fallen members, and urged all to do their best to
contribute lo the fund so that the memorial could be carried out a’
proposed.

Votes of thanks to the Rector for the use of the bells, for arranging
the service and for presiding at. the meeting, to Mi's. Salmon for pre-
siding at the organ, to the Rev. F. L.'Schreiber for his support."and
&> Mr. Longley. the local secretary, for making the arrangements,
concluded the meeting and the members returned to the tower
where, during the afternoon and evening, touches iu a numlter of
methods were rung.

THE PEAL AT STOKE4N.COVENTRY,

The peal of Stedinan rung at Stoke-in-Covcntry was arranged for
lhe two-fold object of celebrating Empire Day, and as a welcomo lo
Messrs. Roberts. Pervin and Johnson, who have been demobilised
The band is still short of two of its members. One, alas! Mr. F
Andrews, will never return. Mr. F. Rrassington is with the Army of
Occupation on the Rhine. The absence of these five members has
made it very difficult to keep things going during tbe last four year-,
and the return of three of them is more than welcome. It is'In-
tcresting to note that the last peal at Stoke was on May 25th. 191H.
when a peal of Stcdman Tripleg was rung as a compliment to Mr.
and Mrs. A. Roberts on the occasion of tlieir silver wedding. The
peal on Saturday was Mr. W. J. Hunt's first peal of Stedman.
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WESTMINSTER ABBEY S PEACE BELLS.
DEDICATION SERVICE.

The consummation of one of the most interesting events
in modern bell hi-tory was witnessed on Tuesday when the
new 1Peace’ bells at Westminster Abbey were solemnly
dedicated and rung for the first time, the service taking
place in the morning and being performed by Dr. Ryle,
Dean of Westminster.

As a work of restoration, this task of providing the
Alibey with a peal of bells worthy of its antiquity and
national importance has never had its equal, at any rate
since the birth of the Ringing Exercise, and the events
associated with it have made it unique. The completion
of an octave of bells at the first ecclesiastical building in
the land is of itself an historic event, but coupled to this are
the facts that the restoration is to mark the conclusion of
the greatest war of all ages, and that the casting of the

ho]ls was performed in llie presence of the King ami
ther, il is of particular interest to recall that'the firm that phice<l
one of the bells in the tower in 1583 is tho firm that hag carried
out tho work in the year 1919, and which has placed in the famous
Abbey all (lie I>olls that have from time to time been added since
the days of Itobert Mot. Such a chain of events is indeed remark
able, and the completion of this scheme stands out as one of the
most famous and important in tho anmUs of bell founding.

Queeu. Fur-

THE RINGING WORLD.

Bofore the restoration was undertaken there wero six bells in tho
massive and stately north-west tower of tbo Abbey, the tenor weigh-
ing a littlo under 30 cwt. The dates.and makers were as follows:—

Tenor. Cast at the Whitechapel Foundry. 1738.
6th. Ditto. 1598.
4th Ditto. 1743.
3rd. Ditto. 1583.
2nd. Ditto. 1743.
Treble. Cast) by Richard de Wymbish. about 1310.

The 2nd was cracked in the crown, and lias lieen recast, tho treble
has been replaced by a now bell, the old olio, a wonderful early 14th
century relic, being happily preserved in the Abbey. Two new trebles
have been ad/led to complete the octavo, with the result that the
four back bells are old, and the four front ones new. -

The old six were buns in a timber framo which was built on four
trussed Loams, supported by four main beams. All tho old timber
work has I>een taken out with tho exception of tho four main beams,
and a new steel framo erected, which takes its bearings in the tower

walls, thus making a perfectly rigid structure. All the bells are
mounted with modern fittings, including iron lieadstocks, and the
bearings are of hard gun-meta] fitted into cast-iron housings, with

new dust proof covers.

The two trebles are to be Icnown as the ‘ Two Sisters,’ the whole
cost of the work having been defrayed by two sisters, who ot pre-
sent remain -anonymous.

Tho inscriptions on the four new bells are as follow:—
4tb:
PAX.
Deus canticum novum cantabo tibi.
1919.
3rd:
The Lord of Hosts is with us
1919.
2nd:
RUTH.
There is none other that iigbteth for us,
Treble:
FAITH.
Thanks lie to Cfod wliich givetli uR the Victory.
All the capital letters are in tho ‘ Somorcotes ' type, and the

smalls in old English.

The 3rd, which is recast from the old 2nd. is the bell the costing
of which was witnessed by the King, Queen and Princess Mary.

Everything, that has been done in the tower bears the stamp ol
that excellent workmanship always associated with the ancient
Whitechapel Foundry, and Mr. Albert A. Hughes, the principal ot
Messrs. Mears and Stainbank, is to lie heartily congratulated not only
upon the fact.that his firm, after the lapse of so many centuries
has retained its association with tho bells of the Abbey, but also
upon the splendid result, from a technical point of view, which has
been achieved.

THE DEDICATION. '

The dedication of the liell9 took place on Tuesday at a special ser-
vice which followed the customary morning service in tho Abbey. For
the ceremony the Dean, with the other clergy and the choir, ac-
companied by the donors of the bells, proceeded to the base of the
towerj, where the dedicatory prayers ;were offered, including tlie
following:—

In the. faith of Jesus Christ and in the hope of the world’s

peace, we dedicate the liells now hung in this tower, as well
those newly cast as those that being old ha've been reno-
vate'! and hung afresh, to the glory of God and for the re-

plenishing of this church of St. Peter in Westminster.

At a signal given by the Dean, the noble peal, in which the four
old and four new bells have been magnificently ‘ spliced,” then ran?
out from above. It was an impressive moment? For those who
waited below iu the Abbey the music was as the deep diapason of a
distant organ, while outside many a passer-by stopped to listen to
the majestic roll of <ra« of the grandest. penJs of eight in (lie king-
dom. The special touch was a course of Stedman Triples rung by
William D. Smith treble, Edwin Horrex 2, Edwin Gibbs 3, Challis- |\
Winney 4. Alfred B. Peck 5, Herbert Langdon 6, Charles Bunion
7, Walter Prime tenor.

At the conclusion of the service, touches of Stedmon Triples an |
Kent Treble Bob Major were rung, the other ringers who were pre-
sent and who took part being Messrs. A. A. Hughes (of the White-

chapel Foundry), AV. T. Cockorill, Albert Walker (Birminghaml.
lvllajor 1 1. B llosse, Messrs. J. C. F. Bailey, W. Hewett, E. Fomr.
elc.

Owing to the day and time of the ceremony, as well as to the
short notice at which the opening was arranged, there were not a
great many ringers present at tile ceremony. It is interesting to
note that Mr. E. Horrex was ono of those who rang at the opening
of tho peal of bells at St. Paul's Cathedral in the year 1878, and
of that band he is the solo survivor.
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GILLETT & JOHNSTON,

We are now resuming our

Pre-War Manufacture of

Tower Clocks and
Carillon Machines

For Cathedrals, Churches,

Town Halls and Public

Buildings, in addition to

the Founding and Hanging
of

CHURCH BELLS.

JUNE, 1919.

CROYDOIN, SURREY



June 6th, igig.
NOTICES.
The Editorial office Of the ‘Ringing World,' to
which all communications should be sent, is 9, com-

mercial Road. Woking.

‘ The Ringing World ' can be obtained by placing an
order with a Newsagent, or it will be sent direct from
the Editorial Office post free for 2/6 per quarter, 10/- per
year.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.— North Bucks
Branch.—The annual meeting of the above will I>e held at
Shenley 01l Satir day, June 7th. Bells (6) Doth at Slien-
ley and Loughton will be available from 230 p.m.
Service at 3.15, tea and business meeting to follow. —W.
Sear, Hon. Sec., 69, Windsor St., Bletchley.

SHEFFIELD AND OLD EAST DERBYSHIRE
AMALGAMATED SOCIETY.—The next meeting will
be held at Noiton on Saturday, June 7th. Eight, bells
(tenor 16 cwt.) from 3 o’clock. Electric from Sheffield to
Woodseats.—Sam Thomas, Hon. Sec., 164, Greyst ;nes
Road, Sheffield.

NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.—Ageneral
meeting will be held at Beccles on Whit Monday, June 9th.
The ring of ten bells in the Campanile of the Parish
Church, by the kind permission of the Rector, will be open
for the use of members from 11 to 1 o’clock and from 3.30
to 5.30. p.m. Dinner will be served at ‘' Gales Hotel ' at
1 p.m. punctually, at 3/6 for honorary members, and 2 ;
for company members, followed by general meeting at
2.30 p.m. sharp. Arrears and subscriptions for 1919 should
be paid without delay.—Arthur L. Coleman, Secretary,
"High Croft,"” North Walsham, Norfolk.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—East Berks and
Sou'll Bucks Branch.—Steeplekeepers are asked to make
known to their members the following fixtures for combined
practices during the month of June.

GREAT MARLOW.—Whit-Monday, at 3 p.llL.
J. C. Truss. St. refers Street.

FARNHAM ROYAL.—Saturday. June 14th, at- 530 p.m. Tea by
notifying Mr. J. J. Parker. < Ellismere.'! The 42nd anniversary of
the opening of the ring of six bells.

STOKE POGE.S anti SLOUGH.—Saturday. June 21st. 3 to 5.30 and
7 till 9 p.m. respectively. The Leytonstone Society's day in Bucks.
Tea at Mr. Lidstone's. High Street. Slough, at 6 o'clock
sending him notice direct.

COOKHAM-ON-THAMES. — Saturday. June
Service at 5.30; tea. by invitation, at 6 o'clock.

afterwards. The Master of the Guild is hoping to be present.”
attending will please inform the Hon. Secretary.

W. H. Fussell, Farnburfl Avenue, nr. Slough.
ESSEX ASSOCIATION.—Fortieth annual meeting at
Chelmsford on Whit Monday next. 3 p.m., service in the
Cathedral with an address by Rev. D. B. Birclay, Yicar
of Braintree ; 3.45 p.m., annual meeting in Vestry Hall,
New Street; 5 p.m., Tea at Hick's Restaurant, High
Street, is. 3d. each to members, 2s. 6d. non-members.
The following towers will be open for ringing during the
day: The Cathedral (12 bells), Gallywood (8). Boreham
(8), Gt. Waltham (8), Writtle (8), Widford (8), Springfield
(6J, Broomfield (6).—C. H. Howard, Master, H. T. W.
Eyre, Hon. Sec., The Temples, Witham.

Tea by notifying Mr.

(Is. each), by

28th. 230 p.m
Social and ringing
Those

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.— General Meet-
ing at Maidstone on Whit Monday, June 9th. Committee
meeting in the OIld College, 11.15 am. MEMORIAL

SERVICE at All Saints’, 12 noon. Offertory for the
Association War Memorial. Business meeting in the Old
College, 2 p.m. Travelling expenses up to 2s. 6d. will be
paid to members after the service. Towers open for ring-
ing: All Saints’ (10), St. Michael’s (6), Aylesford (8), West
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Mailing (8), East Farleigh (6), Barming (6).—Fred J. O.
Helmore, Hon. Sec., Canterbury.

GUILD OF DEVONSHIRE RINGERS.—Annual
meeting at Exeter on Whit-Monday, June 9th. Service in
Cathedral at 3 o’clock with memorial of fallen members.
Address hy the Dean. Tea and meeting at St. Sidwell's
Institute at 4 o’clock.—Rev. E. S. Powell, Hon. Sec.,
Holbeton, Plymouth.

ARKSEY SOCIETY.—The dedication of two new
bells (to complete octave),, a brass memorial tablet, and
Cambridge Chimes will take place in the Parish Church,
Arksey, on Whit Monday, at 3 p.m., by the Bishop of
Sheffield. A cordial invitation is given to all ringing
friends. Behs available after service. Tea will be pro-
vided in the Hall grounds, is. each. New Village cars
run from Doncaster every,, fifteen minutes.—H. Wood-
house, Hon. Sec., Arksey, Doncaster.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.— Liverpool Dio-
cesan Guild.—A meeting will be held at Wigan Parish
Church on Whit Monday. Bells ready at 2 ; service at 5.
Poolstock bells from 2 to 4.—Rev. E. C. Collier and
Walter Hughes, Hon. Stcs.

CENTRAL NORTHAMPTONSHIRE ASSOCIA-
TION.—The annual meeting will be held at Northampton
on Whit Monday June 9th. Ringing at All Saints’, St.
Peter’s, St. Giles’, St. Sepulchre’s and St. Edmund's from
10 to 12. Service at All Saints Church at 12.30, with
address by the Vicar, the Rev. C. Hunt. Luncheon at

the Peacock Hotel, Market Square, at 1.30. Business
meeting to follow. Luncheon, 3s.; members half-price.
The bells of All Saints’, St. Giles’, St. Edmund’s, St.

Sepulchre's and Kingsthorpe will be available after the

meeting until 7 o’clock.—Fred Wailford, General Sec.,
149, Ashburnham Road, Northampton.

DURHAM AND NEWCASTLE DIOCESAN
ASSOCIATION.—The Whit-Monday meeting will be

held at Bishop Auckland on June 9th. By kind permission
of the Yicar, the bells of Parish Church (tenor cwt.)
will be available all day. A committee meeting will be
held in the Cockton Church Hall close to the Church at
4.30. Tea will be provided in the same place at 5 o’clock.
—George T. Potter, Hon. Sec., 13, Park Parade, Whitley
Bay.
~ ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS.—
Established 1637.—Meetings will be held at St. Magnus,
Lower Thames Street, June 12th and 26th, *St. Paul’s
Cathedral on the 17'h, and Southwark Cathedral on the
24th, all at 7.30 p.m. * Business meeting afterwards at
‘The Coffee Pot,” Warwick Lane, E.C.—W.ailliam T.
Cockerill, Hon. Sec., 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.W .4.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—Newbury Branch-
—The Summer meeting will be held at Bucklebury (8 bells)
on Saturday, June 14th. Evensong 4.30 p.m., tea 5 p.m.
Will intending visi-ors kindly notify the Rev. E. M. Thorp,
Bucklebury Vicarage, Reading, not later than June 9th ?

ESSEX ASSOCIATION.—North Eastern Division.—
A “ missionary "’ meeting will be held on Sunday, June 15th,
starting from Kelvedon 9 a.m., via Inworth, Gt. Totham,
Goldhanger, Tollesiury, and Tolleshunt D’Arcy. | shall
be glad to hear from members who intend taking part as
soon as possible, so that final arrangements can be made.—
B. Redgwell, Dist. Sec., Rayne.

WORCESTERSHIRE *ND DISTRICTS ASSOCIA-
T10 N.—Northern Branch.—The next quarterly meetirg
will be held at Northfield on Saturday, June 21st. Bells
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available from 3 p.m. Service in the Church at 4.45.
Business meeting to follow. Tea will be provided at 6d.
each for all those who let me know on or before Wednesday,
June 18th.—E. J. Dowler, 11, St. Edward's Road, Bourn-
brook, Birmingham.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSO-
CIATION .—Bristol Branch.—The next meeting will be
held at Olveston on Saturday, June 14th. Bells available
from 3 p.m. Service at 4.30 p.m.; tea at 5 o'clock. Will
members who intend being present at tea advise me not
later than the 10th inst.?—W. Stafford, Branch Hon. Sec.,
16, Queen’s Road, St. George, Bristol, E.

PETERBOROUGH AND DISTRICT ASSOCIA-
TION.—The quarterly meeting will be held at St.
Andrew’s, Whittlesey, on Saturday, June 14th. Seivice
at 6 o'clock. Bells available afternoon and evening.
Those requiring tea please let me know early.—John J.
Jutson, Hon. Sec., St. Mary’s Schoolhouse, Peterborough.

ROMNEY MARSH GUILD.—The next meeting of
the above will be held at New Romney, Oll Saturday,
June 14th. Bells available from 3 p.m. Tea provided by
the Vicar (Rev. H. South) for those who notify me of their
intention of being present not later than June nth.—H.
Balcomb, Hon. Sec., The Priory, Appledore, Kent.

ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.—Archdeaconry
of Ely.—A district meeting will be held at Stapleford,
Cambs (Shelford Station), on Saturday, June 14th. Bells
(6) available from 2 o’'clock. Short Service at 5; tea at
5.30. Will those intending to be present please notify me
as soon as possible?—A. E. Austin, District Sec., 4, Hills
View, Great Shelford, Cambs.

THE LLANDAFF DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.—
The next quarterly meeting will be held at Caerleon,
Mon., on Saturday, June 14th, at 4.30 p.m. Bells (8)
available.—Rev. Connop L. Price, M.A., and John W.
Jones, Hon. Secs., 29, Barrack Hill, Newport, Mon.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—South and West District.—
An evening meeting will be held at Acton on Wednesday
June 18th. Ringing from 5.30 p.m. All ringers welcome
—W. H. Oram, Hon. Sec., 25, Crown Street, Harrow.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND YOUTHS.
—Quarterly meeting on Saturday, June 21st, at Hillingdon,
both towers open. Will members who intend to be present
please notify me by the 18th?—H. J. Bradley, Hon. Sec.,
25, Winchester Avenue, Brondesbury, N.W.6.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.— The next meeting
of the Western District will be held at Kildwick on
Saturday, 21st June. Bells (8) available from 2.30 p.m.
Tea (is. 3d.) at 4.30 p.m. in schools to those who notify
Mr. Charles Law, Main Street, Kildwick, near Keighley,
not later than Monday, June 16th. Business meeting to
follow tea. All ringers welcome. — Percy.L. Cooper,
Hon. District Sec.

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Late the St.
James’ Society, Estab. 1824.— A meeting for practice will
he held at St. Mary’s, Putney, at 4 p.m., on Saturday,
June 2ist. As this marks the resumption of the Southern
District meetings, the officers and members are requested
to attend, particularly the business meeting after the
practice.—T. Walker, Hon. Sec., 50, Cannon Street, E.C.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Manchester Branch.
—The next meeting will be held at Whitefield, on Saturday,
June 2ist. Bells ready 330; meeting at 7.—W. W.
Wolstencroft, Branch Sec.
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WARWICKSHIRE GUILD.— A monthly meeting
will be held at Berkswell on Saturday, June 21st. Bells
available from 3 o’clock. All outstanding subscriptions
should now be paid.—Joseph H. White, Hon. Sec., 59,
George Eliot Road, Coventry.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIA PION.—Southern District.—
The next quarterly meeting will be held at Rawmarsh on
Saturday, June 2Ilst. Bells (8) available from 3 o’clock.
Service at 5. Tea will be provided at a charge of 6d.eacb,
those intending to be present kindly notify me not later
than June 18th. Through the kindness of the Rector (Rev.
F. G. Scovell) the Rectory grounds will be open for the
w'e of ringers and friends. Rotherham and Mexbro’ cars
pass the church.—Arthur Hague, District Sec., 16, God-
stone Road, Rotherham.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.-Blackburn Branch.—
A meeting of the above Branch will be held at Holy
Trinity Church, Burnley, on Saturday, June 21lst. Bells
ready at 3 o'clock ; meeting at 6.30 p.m., the Vicar will
preside—J. Watson, Branch Sec., 33, Langham Road,
Blackburn.

SAFFRON WALDEN SOCIETY. Established 1623.
—Great ringing day will be held on Friday, June 27th.
Ringing commences at 9 am. Visitors welcome. Dinner
at 1 o’clock. Will those wishing to partake of dinner
kindly let Secretary know ? If visitors, wishing to make
a week-end, will kindly inform the Secretary, he will
arrange for ringing on the Saturday and Sunday.—R. A.
Strong, West Road, Hon. Sec,

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.— Northern
District.—The tower of St. Mary, Islington, is open for
practice every Friday evening at 7.30 p.m.—Hon. District
Sec , F. G. Symonds.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND YOUTHS.—
Meetings for practice : St.Martin’sfirst Monday in the month
at 7.30 p.m.; second Saturday, St. Bride's, 5 p.m. ; third
Monday, Shoreditch, 7.30 p.m.—H.J. Bradley, Hon. Sec.

PEAL BOOKS.—Price 3s., post free 3/6. Peals writ-
ten in at 3d. per page. Prices for entering peals in Asso-
ciation official peal books upon application.—J. Beams,
West Ewell, Epsom.

HANDBELLS FOR SALE.

SET OF HANDBELLS, C to C, 10 in all. nearly
new, by Warner & Son, London, 10s., or next offer ; or
would exchange for a 46 or 56 Duet Concertina.—G. Fuller,
36, Derby Road, West Croydon.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.

The meeting of the North and East District, hold at St. Andrew'-,.
Holborn, was disappointing so far as attendance was concerned. A
short service was conductcd by the Vicar, and at the business meet-
ing five new members were elected. Tlie Vicar was thanked for
allowing lIbe meeting to be held at St. Andrew's, an/l the use of the
bells, which unfortunately went very badly 01l that day.

HANDBELL PEAL AT SOLIHULL.

The first handbell peal of Triples in Solihull, Warwickshire, is re-
corded in another column. The band who rang this peal began practis-
ing together just 12 months ago, and they aro entirely self-taught.
Charles Bragg commenced ringing a year ago. Ho is 14 years of age.
and he rang the poal practically without a mistake. Tho band have
rung eight peals since last July, and had four attempts for tho
Triples. Perseverance has, however, now gained its reward. All tho
ringers are related to one another, and tho ringcrK of 5—6 and 7—8
are discharged soldier*, tho conductor being the holder of the Military
Medal.
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LLANDAFF DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

PAST MASTER'S PEAL ATTEMPT.
Tho first Master of the above Association, Mr. Evan Davies, ot C u n S
Uaerlcon, attained his 60th birthday on Wednesday, May 28th, and

to mark tho occasion and to appreciate tho services of one that has
douo so much for change ringing, and to whom tho lion, socrctary ot
the Association is indebted for his iirst instruction, a band of past
mastors from Newport, Cardiff and LlandaiT journeyed to Caerleon

and attempted a peal. All wont well for an hour and a half, when at
lialf-way the bells were stopped owing to a ‘ shift course,” much ‘ I I l
to tho disappointment of all it being tho first time a past master's [N

peal had been attempted to honour ono of their number. The band 1 — mi— Im u i ebsb -
woro afterwards tho guests of Mr. Davies to a bountiful supper, and a = L T T H e -

very pleasant evening was spent, the party wishing Mr. Davies many
happy roluim.

THE J. S. GOLDSMITH TESTIMONIAL.

To enabie mo to bring this successful and interesting schome to a
closo, 1 shall be glad it those who still have lists and amounts iu band
will Kindly forward the”e to me with as little delay as possible.

As amounts so liberally continue to come iu, it is intended to keep
the fund open for the present.

JAMES GEORGE,

Hon. Sec. and Treasurer:
13, Dolman Road, Aston, Birmingham.

BELL ROPES

John Astley & Sons

LIMITED,
COVENTRY.

MAKERS SINCE 1730.

RINGERS! o CHURCH BELLS SINGLY OE
Please send your enquiries. IN RINGS.

SATISFACTION GUARANTEED.

Bell Frames in Cast lron, Steel
 and Oak.

JOHN TAYLOR & GO., Bells tuned on the latest Im-

proved principles initiated by

Belifounders the late Canon Simpson.

AND

Bellhangers,

CASTHE GREEN,

LOUGHBOROUGH, __ ooreray o

' LEICESTERSHIRE.
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‘]OHN WARMER & SONS “The World's Best Bellropes”

LIMITED,
PROVED IN THE RINGING OF THE

WORLD'S RECORD PEAL.
BEFORB THB WAR. SEND YOUR
ORDERS AND LET US CONVINCE YOU.

MImmS’ “ Splicing and Repairs
JOHN PRITCHARD,

THE SPITALFIELDS BELL FOUNDRY, S S UGHBOROUGH.

Established over a HUNDRED YEABS.

SPELMAN STREET,

Unique for Presentation.
LONDON, E.I. d
An Inkstand in the design of a Well-shaped Bell

By Royal Warrant to H.M. King George V.

O ESTABLISHED 1763. 0

The Jasper bnowdon Series.

ROPE-BIGHT. 1». Bd.; sixth ed. 150 pages; Plain oom'

mencing on three bella. . This charming model in Solid Hall Marked Silver
GKANDSL1RE. Zs. Bd.; second ed.; 164 pagei; commeacing on 4re will make a moet appropriate and useful Gift.

bolls; complete with the Thompson Chart*, eto., eto. It can be supplied In the following sizes'—
EIQE‘EQED QAETB';OD;S 6th Edt')"‘"t‘h'\“’R"" Begdyba*; Gg- B VA Diameter 27in.  2fin.  3jin. 3%in. 4in. 48$in. 5m.

. Zs. 5 pages, by the Rev. C. D. P. Dauvies, A, .

with an appendix by 8ir Arthur Heywood, Bart., etc., eto. Price ... 16/- _22/_6 28/6 35/- 56/- 53/- 67/6
TREBLE BOB. Part I. Is. Bd.; seoond ed.; with appendix; 100 Monogram or Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Charges
* closely printed pages. Part Il., suite* for Coniuotor* only;

rery scarce; 2s. ljd.; Z3B pages J nnM D T ji'D Goldsmith and
DODBLE NORWICH 0. B. Major. At present out of print. o u U iY IJjH iX i, Silversmith,
BURPRISE PEALS. Cambridge, BuperlatiJ* and Londom; oompiling. WOKI NG

All poet free, on receipt of postal order, from (MAKER OF THE RINGERS BADGE.)

Mrs. LAURA SNOWDON, Cartmel, Lancashire.
! ! " THOMAS POBLE & SON, Church Bell-

ALFRED BOWELL, mostapproved principies old Belis R cast
New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make.

CHURCH BEI_L FOUNDER’ Ellacombe’s Chiming Apparatus fixed, Hand-

bells in sets, Chromatic or Diatonic

IpsWicH - - THE BADGE CF THE CRAFT

A Beautifully Executed

JOHN jMi 1r. & SONS RINGERS'  PENDANT

Midland Clock Works, in dold, Silver or Bronze.

D E R B Y CV_ Specially Suitable for (lifts.

- . Prices, Gold (9 carat) 30/-, Silver 6/6
;%Tgcrlfs?hllg'efbdyé’rf * Bronze 2/9 (post free).

Tel. No. 569 - P\)& J@P@@MBECR,A'@OMS”]W %dfie\?’ei”\e/r'n

CHIMES for S. Paul's Cathedra! ) , i
Leverley Minster, Selby Abbey, Truio 1KLEI'UOKE ;171 WOKIHC)
Cathedral, Thurles Cathedral, Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, Belfast Assembly Hall, Magdalen College, Oxford,
and many others to Lord Grimthorpe’s designs. « In 1897, Printed for th* ProWfatore by the Woodbridge Pros*. Ltd., Guild-
% writing to the Vicar of Minchinhampton, Lord Grimtborpe said .—* Smitb ford and Published by The Rolls House Publishing Co.. Lfd.. Bream«
it Mtbi wilJ clock you iu the boat way and as near eternity poafiblf.” muilAinn London, B.C.



